BY-LAWS

OF

THE PAID FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE INSURANCE AUTHORITY

ARTICLE I

THE AUTHORITY

- 1.1 <u>Name of the Authority</u>. The statutory name of the Authority shall be "the Paid Family and Medical Leave Insurance Authority;" however, it may be referred to as "the CT Paid Leave Authority" in any contracts or other legal documents.
- 1.2 <u>Seal of the Authority</u>. The Authority may create a seal in any form approved by the Board of Directors. The Chief Executive Officer of the Authority shall be the custodian of any Seal created.
- 1.3 **Logo**. The Authority may adopt a logo to identify the Authority and its property.
- 1.4 <u>Office of the Authority</u>. The office of the Authority shall be maintained at such place or places within the State of Connecticut as the Board may designate.

ARTICLE II

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- 2.1 <u>Powers and Number</u>. The powers of the Authority shall be vested in and exercised by the Board of Directors. The composition of the Board and the appointment and qualifications of its members shall be as set forth in the Act. Prior to assuming office, each member of the Board shall take and subscribe the oath or affirmation required by Article XI, Section 1 of the State Constitution, a record of which shall be filed in the office of the Secretary of the State.
- 2.2 <u>Compensation</u>. The members of the Board shall receive no compensation for the performance of their duties, but each such member shall, within available appropriations, be reimbursed in accordance with Section 5-141c-1 et seq. of the Regulations of State Agencies for all necessary expenses that they may incur through service on the board.
- 2.3 <u>Attendance</u>. Any appointed Director who fails to attend, in person or participate as permitted in Section 4.7 hereof, in three consecutive meetings of the Board, including meetings of any committee to which the Director is assigned, or who fails to attend, in person or participate as permitted in Section 4.7 hereof, in fifty percent (50%) of all meetings of the Board, including meetings of any committee to which the Director is assigned, held during any calendar year shall be deemed to have resigned from the Board unless the reason for the Director's absence is one of the reasons listed in section 31-51ll or section 31-51ss of the Connecticut General Statutes. An appointed Director does not include ex officio Board members.

ARTICLE III

OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES

- 3.1 <u>Officers</u>. The officers of the Authority shall be the Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson, the Secretary, the Chief Executive Officer and any such other officers as may be appointed by the Board and not in conflict with law.
- 3.2 <u>Chairperson</u>. The Chairperson shall perform the duties enumerated in the Act, these Bylaws, and by resolution of the Board. The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Authority at which he or she is present. At each meeting, the Chairperson or the Chairperson's designee shall submit such recommendations and information as the Chairperson may consider appropriate concerning the business, affairs and policies of the Authority. The Chairperson shall have direct supervisory authority over the Chief Executive Officer.
- 3.3 <u>Vice-Chairperson</u>. The Board shall elect from its members a Vice-Chairperson. Except as otherwise prohibited by law, the Vice-Chairperson shall perform all the duties and responsibilities of the Chairperson in the absence or incapacity of the Chairperson, and shall perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors may from time to time prescribe.
- 3.4 <u>Secretary</u>. The Board shall elect from its members a Secretary. The Secretary shall perform the duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors may from time to time prescribe.
- 3.5 Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Executive Officer shall be the executive director of the Authority. The Chief Executive Officer shall serve at the pleasure of the Board and receive such compensation as shall be decided by the Board. The Chief Executive Officer shall enter into such employment arrangements with the Authority as approved by the Board as shall be appropriate from time to time. The Chief Executive Officer, who shall not be a member of the Board, shall direct and supervise administrative affairs and the technical activities of the Authority in accordance with the directives of the Board, and shall perform such other duties as are imposed by the Act, these By-laws, or by resolution of the Board. The Board, by a majority vote, may by resolution delegate to some other person or persons all or part of the above enumerated duties of the Chief Executive Officer and may appoint one or more persons to serve as acting Chief Executive Officer in the event of the absence or incapacity of the Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Executive Officer shall attend all meetings of the Board except where the Board expressly indicates otherwise.
- 3.6 <u>Additional Personnel</u>. The Authority may from time to time employ such personnel as it deems necessary to exercise its powers, duties and functions pursuant to the Act, and any and all other laws of the State of Connecticut applicable thereto. The selection and compensation of such

personnel shall be determined by the Chief Executive Officer and approved by the Board in accordance with Board-approved policies, applicable procedures and relevant law.

3.7 <u>Signature Authority</u>. The Chief Executive Officer and other Officers and employees of the Authority shall have such signature authority as may from time to time be provided by resolution of the Board. The Board may by resolution authorize the Chief Executive Officer to delegate signature authority to employees of the Authority.

ARTICLE IV

BOARD MEETINGS

- 4.1 <u>Regular Meetings</u>. Regular meetings of the Board or any Committee for the transaction of any lawful business of the Authority shall be held in accordance with a schedule of meetings established by the Board or such Committee.
- 4.2 <u>Special Meetings</u>. The Chairperson may, when the Chairperson deems it expedient, call a special meeting of the Board for the purpose of transacting any business designated in the notice of such meeting. The Committee Chair of any Committee may, when the Committee Chair deems it expedient, call a special meeting of such Committee for the purpose of transacting any business designated in the notice of such meeting.
- 4.3 <u>Legal Requirements</u>. All meetings of the Board or any Committee shall be noticed and conducted in accordance with the applicable requirements of the Act and the Connecticut Freedom of Information Act. Agendas and minutes of such meetings shall be posted in accordance with the Connecticut Freedom of Information Act.
- 4.4 <u>Order of Business</u>. The order of business of any meeting of the Board or any Committee shall be as set forth in the agenda for such meeting, provided that the Board or Committee may vary the order of business in its discretion.
- 4.5 **Quorum and Voting.** A majority of the voting members of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business or the exercise of any power of the Authority. The affirmative vote of a simple majority of voting members present at a meeting of the Board or any Committee at which a quorum is present shall be sufficient for action, including the passage of any resolution, except as may otherwise be required by law.
- 4.6 **Designation of Substitutes for** *Ex Officio* **Directors**. Each *ex officio* member of the Board may designate any staff member to serve as a representative at any meeting. In the case of voting *ex officio* members, such designee shall have the full power to act and vote at such meeting.
- 4.7 <u>Participation of Members in Meetings by Electronic Means</u>. Members of the Board or any Committee may participate in any meeting of the Board or any Committee by means of teleconferences, videoconference or similar communication arrangement that permits each Board member to hear and be heard by each other Board member as if present in person.

- 4.8 <u>Executive Session</u>. The Board or any Committee may hold an executive session upon the vote of two-thirds (2/3rds) of the Board members thereof present and voting for the purposes and in the manner provided by the Connecticut Freedom of Information Act.
- 4.9 <u>Conduct of Meetings</u>. The proceedings of the Board or any Committee shall be conducted as mutually agreed by members of the Board or Committee, except where inconsistent with these By-Laws. In the absence of agreement, the rules contained in the current edition of the Robert's Rules of Order shall govern all proceedings at the Board or any Committee, except where such rules are inconsistent with these By-Laws.

ARTICLE V

COMMITTEES

- 5.1 <u>Powers of Delegation</u>. The Board may, by resolution, delegate any and all things necessary or convenient to carry out the purpose of the Authority to three (3) or more members of the Board.
- 5.2 <u>Standing and Other Committees</u>. The Board may establish such standing and other committees from time to time as it deems necessary for the proper carrying out of its functions. The Board shall determine the size and purpose of each such committee. Members of each such committee shall be appointed by the Chairperson of the Board. The Chairperson of such committee shall be appointed by the Chairperson of the Board.
- 5.3 <u>Report of Committee Action</u>. Minutes of each committee shall be prepared and shall be filed promptly with the Chief Executive Officer. Each Committee shall report from time to time to the Board on such Committee's actions and activities.

ARTICLE VI

GOVERNANCE

- 6.1 <u>Fiscal Year</u>. The fiscal year of the Authority shall commence July 1 of each calendar year and conclude June 30 of the following calendar year.
- 6.2 <u>Evaluation of By-Laws</u>. The Board shall evaluate its By-laws at least every three years to ensure their currency and efficacy. By-laws and associated policies may be modified by resolution of the Board, in accordance with the applicable statutes and with the procedures set forth in the By-laws, to reflect any adjustments deemed necessary or beneficial by the Board or additional requirements of the administration relative to general governance to ensure accountability and proper internal controls.
- 6.3 <u>Amendment or Repeal</u>. These By-Laws may be repealed or amended or new By-Laws may be adopted by the affirmative vote of a majority of all voting members of the Board at any regular or special meeting of the Board, provided that the notice of such meeting includes notice

of the proposed change. The Authority may adopt rules for the conduct of its business, and the adoption of such rules shall not constitute an amendment of these By-Laws.

6.4 <u>Adoption of Policies</u>. The Board shall be governed by basic governance principles established through codified policies and procedures to ensure accountability, transparency, security and responsibility to applicable laws, regulations, and best practices. The Board shall adopt by resolution and implement policies regarding employment, compensation, evaluation and discipline of Authority employees; signatory authority; contracting and purchase of services including thresholds and criteria for waiving competitive bidding; annual independent audits of Authority finances; financial reporting; investment policies; reserves; internal control and risk management; and such other policies as the Board deems are necessary or beneficial for the conduct and operation of the Authority.

ARTICLE VII

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST; FIDUCIARY DUTIES

- 7.1 <u>Conflicts of Interest.</u> Public confidence in the decisions and other actions of the Board and any Committee requires that members avoid both actual conflicts of interest as defined in Sections 1-85 and 1-86 of the Connecticut General Statutes and situations that may give the appearance of a conflict of interest. The existence and nature of any actual conflict of interest or any situation that may give the appearance of a conflict of interest shall be promptly disclosed to Board and shall comply with the provisions of Section 1-86 of the Connecticut General Statutes as applicable.
- 7.2 <u>Substantial Conflicts of Interest</u>. A member shall not participate in any deliberations or vote, shall not take any affirmative action as a member of the Board or any Committee, and shall not have access to any non-public confidential information with respect to a matter in which such member has an interest which is in substantial conflict with the proper discharge of the duties and responsibilities of membership on the Board or such Committee. For this purpose, the determination of whether a member has an interest which is in substantial conflict with the duties and membership on the Board or a Committee shall be made in the manner provided in Section 1-85 of the Connecticut General Statutes for conflicting interests of public officials.
- Potential Conflicts of Interest. With respect to potential conflicts of interest, as defined in Section 1-86(a) of the Connecticut General Statute and pursuant thereto and pursuant to Section 1-81-30(c) of the Regulations of Connecticut State Agencies, the member shall either (1) excuse himself or herself from participating in any deliberation or vote on the matter and may not otherwise take any affirmative action on the matter or (2) shall prepare a written statement prepared under penalty of false statement describing the matter requiring action and the nature of the potential conflict and explaining why, despite the potential conflict, such member is able to vote and otherwise participate fairly, objectively, and in the public interest, and shall deliver a copy of

such statement to the Office of State Ethics and shall enter a copy of the statement in the minutes of the Board or Committee, as applicable.

- 7.4 <u>Financial Interests in Entities Contracting with the Authority</u>. In accordance with subdivision (1) of subsection (k) of section 2 of the Act, no member of the Board or any officer, agent or employee of the Authority shall, directly or indirectly, have any financial interest in any corporation, business trust, estate, trust, partnership or association, two or more persons having a joint or common interest, or any other legal or commercial entity contracting with the Authority. As used in this section, "financial interest" does not include an interest of a *de minimus* nature or an interest that is not distinct from that of a substantial segment of the general public.
- 7.4.1 Pursuant to subdivision (2) of subsection (k) of section (2) of the Act, it shall not be a conflict of interest or a violation of the statutes or these By-laws, for a trustee, director, officer or employee of a bank, insurance company, investment advisor, investment company, or investment banking firm to serve as a member of the Board, provided, such individual abstains from discussion, deliberation, action and vote by the Board in specific respect to any undertaking in which such firm has a direct interest separate from the interests of all similar firms generally.
- 7.5 <u>Fiduciary Duties</u>. Members of the Board owe the fiduciary duties of care, loyalty and compliance to the Authority.
- 7.5.1 "Duty of care" means each member must discharge his or her duties in good faith and with the same degree of care that would be used by a reasonable prudent person in the same position.
- 7.5.2 "Duty of loyalty" means each member must put the interests of the Authority over his or her own interests or the interests of family members and other persons, businesses or organizations in which they may be involved.
- 7.5.3 "Duty of compliance" means each member must be faithful to the Authority's mission and must comply with the statutes, regulations, by-laws and policies that apply to the Authority.

ARTICLE VIII

DEFINITIONS

- 8.1 **<u>Definitions</u>**. Unless the context shall otherwise require, the following words and terms shall have the following meanings:
- 8.1.1. "Act" shall mean Public Act 19-25, entitled "An Act Concerning Paid Family and Medical Leave," as amended by Public Act 19-117, entitled "An Act Concerning the State Budget for the Biennium Ending June 30, 2021, and Making Appropriations Therefor, and Provisions Related to Revenue and Other Items to Implement the State Budget," codified at sections 31-49e *et seq.* of the Connecticut General Statutes, as the same may be further amended from time to time.
 - 8.1.2. "Authority" means the Paid Family and Medical Leave Insurance Authority.

- 8.1.3. "Board" means the board of directors of the Authority appointed and serving pursuant to the Act.
- 8.1.4. "Chairperson" shall mean the Chairperson the Authority appointed pursuant to the Act.
- 8.1.5. "Chief Executive Officer" shall mean the Chief Executive Officer of the Authority appointed by and serving at the pleasure of the Board pursuant to the Act.
 - 8.1.6. "Committee" means any committee of or formed by the Board.

ARTICLE IX

AUTHORITY

9.1 These By-Laws are adopted pursuant to the Act.